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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly known as Blue Star
Electro-Mechanical Limited)

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blue Star Engineering & Electronics
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

TR . a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 31 of the financial statements, relating to amalgamation of Blue Star
Design & Electronics Limited (BSDEL) with the Company which has been accounted under the
"Purchase Method" as per Accounting Standard 14 *Accounting for amalgamation” (AS-14) in
compliance with the Scheme of Amalgamation pursuant to Sections 391-394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay. Accordingly, the Company has
recognised capital reserve on amalgamation amounting to Rs. 5,649.28 lakhs as excess of the fair
value of net assets taken over fair value shares issued and book value of cumulative redeemable
preference share of BSDEL cancelled in accordance with the scheme. This accounting treatment
is different from the accounting prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 -
"Business Combination” for business combination of entities under common control. Had the
accounting treatment prescribed under Ind AS 103 been followed, profit after tax reported for the
year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 would have been higher by Rs. 334.65 lakhs and
Rs. 376.85 lakhs respectively and other equity reported for the year ended March 31, 2017, March
31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 would have been lower by Rs. 2,711.42 lakhs, Rs. 3,046.07 lakhs,
Rs. 3,422.92 lakhs respectively.

Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
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(e) Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 2" to this report;

(9> With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 17 to the
financial statements;

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. As per books of accounts of the Company and represented by the management,
the Company did not have cash balance as on November 8, 2016 and December
30, 2016 and has no cash dealings during this period.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Firoz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Number: 109360

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 4, 2017
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND-AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited

) @ The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

© According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the Company.

(i) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

i According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented

upon.
w The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified

the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

(vii) @ The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-
tax, service tax, customs duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it. The provisions relating to excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, customs duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable. The provisions relating to excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

©) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or
debenture holders or government.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given by the management,
the Company has utilised the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which
they were raised. The Company has not raised any money way of initial public offer, further
public offer and debt instruments.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provision of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per

Partner
Membership Number: 109360

Place of Signature: Mumbai

iroz Pradhan

Date: May 4, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND-AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’™)

To the Members of Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly known as Blue Star
Electro-Mechanical Limited)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Blue Star Engineering &
Electronics Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’'s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of colfusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Firoz Pradhan
Partner
Membership Number: 109360

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 4, 2017



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2017

As at As at As at
Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
A. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 3 384.36 230.93 186.18
Capital Work in Progress - - 0.37
Investment Properties 3b 5,959.33 6,607.63 6,952.30
Intangible Asset 3a 1.72 2.84 -
Intangible Asset under development - 1.35 1.35
Financial Assets
-Trade Receivables 4 46.28 216.50 546.56
-Loans 5 51.03 38.37 29.81
-Other Financial Assets 12 - - 35.87
Income Tax Assets (Net) 6 153.03 352.49 335.94
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 496.50 324.82 282.80
Other non-current assets 8 139.16 325.07 250.44
Total Non Current Assets 7,231.41 8,100.00 8,621.62
2. Current Assets
Inventories g 1,513.25 1,928.72 1,570.86
Financial Assets 4
-Investment 10 - 0.01 0.01
-Loans 5 14.48 19.86 4.49
-Trade Receivables 4 6,029.55 4,420.82 4,068.08
-Cash and cash Equivalents 11 397.84 15.98 1.20
-Other Financial Assets 12 1,333.28 847.39 1,456.31
Other Current Assets 13 671.45 506.10 719.26
Total Current Assets 9,959.85 7,738.88 7,820.21
TOTAL ASSETS 17,191.26 15,838.88 16,441.83
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY
Share Capital 14 1,058.50 1,058.50 766.00
Other Equity 15 4,307.72 3,837.28 3,602.17
Total Equity 5,366.22 4,895.78 4,368.17
2. Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Borrowings 18 1,982.25 1,804.58 2,489.97
-Other Financial Liabilities 16 86.28 304.97 309.58
Long Term Provisions 17 39.37 46.13 79.22
Total Non-current liabilities 2,107.90 2,155.68 2,878.77
3. Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 18 2,981.98 4,069.53 4,381.03
-Trade Payables 19.A 3,577.22 2,456.35 2,330.81
-Other Payables 19.B - 348.88 -
-Other Current Financial Liabilities 16 716.17 181.68 -
Provisions 17 212.57 220.44 248.14
Other Current Liabilities 20 2,229.20 1,510.54 2,234.91
Total Current liabilities 9,717.14 8,787.42 9,194.89
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,191.26 15,838.88 16,441.83
Summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICA! Firm Registration No 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Statement Of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended
Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 18,030.38 13,241.65
Other income 22a 51.15
Finance income 22b 118.87 41.83
Total Revenue (I) 18,149.25 13,334.63
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed and project related costs 23 2,319.96 1,266.18
Purchase of traded goods 24 8,118.09 6,270.87
(Increase) / Decrease in stock of traded goods 25 415.47 (359.09)
Employee benefits expense 26 2,515.77 2,264.45
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 691.97 750.59
Finance Costs 28 639.59 72547
Other expenses 29 2,956.68 1,891.48
Total Expense (II) 17,657.53 12,809.95
Profit before Tax 491.72 524.68
Tax expenses
i) Current Tax : Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 7 171.68 42.01
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement 7 (171.68) (42.01)
Net Current Tax - -
iy Deferred Tax 7 - -
Total Tax expenses - -
Profit for the year 491.72 524.68
Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan (net (21.28) 2.93
of tax)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 470.44 527.61
Earnings per Share [Nominal value of share Rs. 2]
(31 Mar 2016 : Rs. 2)
Basic and diluted EPS 33 0.93 0.99
Summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants lue §tar Engineering & Electronics Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No 324982E/E300003 fll j/ II,I -~
[/~ &\t](/" Ty s A QZ&
) & ¢ Wir ._‘l:Advani Sufan Chattérjee
! Director Director & CFO

P

oot

Yogesh Joshi
Company Secretary

per Firoz Pradhan
Partner

Membership No. 109360
Piace: Mumbai

Date: May 4, 2017 Place: Mumbai
Date: May 4, 2017
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)

. Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 491.72 524.68
Actuarial (loss) / gain included in OCl (21.28) 2.93
470.44 527.61
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation / amortisation 691.97 750.59
Bad Debts Written Off 11.28 392.95
342.13 (436.88)

Provision for doubtful debts and advances and expected credit loss (net)
Interest expenses (including fair value change in financial instruments) 639.59 72547
Interest on income tax refund (69.43) (17.29)
Other Interest Income (25.60) (1.00)
Provision/Liability no longer required written back (181.04) (494.00)
Unrealized foreign Exchange (Gains) / Loss 49.31 (80.39)
Interest Income on Financia! Asset (30.77) (23.70)
Fair Value loss on financial instrument 2.85 3.64
Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 1,900.73 1,347.00
Movements in working capital :

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 1,291.99 456.42

Increase/(decrease) in short/long term provisions (14.63) (60.79)

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 719.03 (724.37)

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (1.23) (6.57)

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivable (1,799.40) 262.93

Decrease/(increase) in inventory 415.47 (357.85)

Decrease/(increase) in Short/long term loans (12.21) (23.94)

Decrease/(increase) in other non current/current assets (120.81) 279.91

Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets (485.89) 668.37
Cash generated from / (Used in) operations 1,893.05 1,841.11
Income tax refund /(paid) (net) for earlier year 27.78 (64.68)
Interest on income tax refund 69.43 17.29
Net cash flow / (used in) operating activities [A] 1,990.26 1,793.72
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advance (402.15) (248.85)
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities [B] (402.15) {248.85)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of short-term borrowings (less than 90 days), net (1,418.07) (330.37)
Repayment of short-term borrowings - (1,000.00)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 2,500.00 1,400.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (104.71) (503.71)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 600.00 -
Interest paid (639.59) (725.47)
Other Interest Received 25.60 1.00
Net Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities [C] 963.23 (1,158.55)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A + B + C] 2,551.34 386.32
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year {2,153.55) (2,539.87)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 397.79 (2,153.55)
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 4.99 4.83
With banks - on current account 392.85 11.15
Less: Bank Overdraft (Refer note 11) (0.05) (2,169.53)
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent (Refer note 11) 397.79 (2,153.55)
Note :

1&2

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited

(L poto—

e %:
n Chalterjee

ir § Advani
Director Director & CFO
Yoo
Place: Mumbai |'\§r JiE) Yogesh Joshi
Date: May 4, 2017 \\\ﬁ,‘ Company Secretary
Rlace: Mumbai

Date: May 4, 2017
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2017

1. Corporate information

Blue Star Engineering and Electronic Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India (with effect
from 27th February 2015, the name of the Company has changed from Blue Star Electro Mechanical Limited to
Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited). The registered office of the company is located at Kasturi Building,
Jamshedji Tata Road, Mohan T Advani Chowk, Mumbai — 400020. The Company is into distribution and
maintenance of imported professional electronics and industrial systems and in the business of providing Plumbing
& Fire Fighting Contracting Services, providing engineering services in the field of refrigerators and air conditioning,
heating and ventilation and also renting of properties.

Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Blue Star Limited. The financial
statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 4, 2017.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

Refer to note 43 on First-time adoption to Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

- Derivative financial instruments,

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments),

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except
when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Group has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from March 31, 2015. As such, Indian GAAP balances relating
to business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with minimal
adjustment (please refer note 31). Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair
value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiabie net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed inciude contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

> Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 - Income Tax and Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits
respectively.

> Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 - Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting
dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest heid, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity
as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2017 P

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Common control transactions

Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses,
between entities within the Company.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling
of interests method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities are
reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if the business
combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the
actual date of the combination. However, if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period
information is restated only from that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the
form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and
presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.

b. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

P Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

> It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

P it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2017 g 2 _ ———

c. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements is presented in INR, which is also its functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on transiation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

d. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrurnents, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in jts highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the levet of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

e. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duties collected on behaif of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and ¢redit risks.

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax
coliected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded
from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

Revenue from construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after providing for
foreseeable losses, if any. Percentage of completion is determined as a proportion of the cost incurred upto the
reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any, on the contracts is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. While
determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and related incidental income not included in
contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is refiected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till
such time the outcome of the contract cannot be ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter. Claims are
accounted as income in the year of acceptance by customer.

Revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected under “Other Financial Assets” and billing in excess of
contract revenue is reflected under “Other Current Liabilities” in the balance sheet. Contract Work-in-Progress is
stated at cost till such time as the outcome of the project cannot be ascertained reliably and has been reflected
under “Other Current Assets”.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume

rebates.

Rendering of services
Revenues from annual maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Commission income is recognized as and when the terms of the contracts are fulfilled.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and

loss.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

f. Taxes

Current income tax:

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

> When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred
tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from
new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the tarrying amount of
goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the
principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or
loss.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to
be carried forward. The said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT
Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes
down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period. MAT is considered as a deferred tax item.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

» When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to regard the carrying costs of property, plant and equipment under the previous GAAP
(Indian GAAP) as deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind-AS (Please refer Note 43 on first time adoption).
Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

All assets are depreciated to the residual values on written-down value method.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Name of Tangible [Life (in
Asset years)
Piant & Machinery  [20

Furniture & Fixtures |10

Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Computers 3

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calcuiated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, ptant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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h. Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over the useful life of the properties 60-85
years on written down value basis from the date of original purchase. which is as prescribed under the schedule ||
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the useful life considered for the properties are as follows:

Name of the[Life (in years)
Property
Band Box 85
House
Other 60
Investment
Properties

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
the building over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1 to the
Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation
Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

i. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected usefu! life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intanaible assets
The useful lives of other intangible assets are as mentioned below:

Nature of Method of
intangible amortization

lasset

Software Written down value

of assets over a
period of 6 years

. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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k. Leases
Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss, uniess they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the iease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

I. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

» Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's
(CGU) fair vaiue less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

n. Provisions and contingencies

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Other Litigation claims
Provision for litigation related obligation represents liabilities that are expected to materialise in respect of matters in
appeal.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower expected costs of terminating the
contract and the expected cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognises impairment on the assets with the contract.

Contingencies

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation;

- a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

- a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

o. Retirement and other employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of
bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered the service entitling them to the contribution.

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund which is administered by the trustees. The Rules of the
Company’s Provident Fund administered by a trust, require that if the Board of the Trustees are unable to pay
interest at the rate declared by the Government under Para 60 of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1972 for
the reason that the return on investment is less for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the
Company making interest shortfall a defined benefit plan. Accordingly, the Company has obtained actuary valuation
and based on the valuation there is no deficiency as at the balance sheet date. Hence, the liability is restricted
towards monthly contributions only.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss: 3

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailiments and non-
routine settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

Long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit

obligation at the balance sheet date.

p. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
ron #evmrincipal amount outstanding.
DE‘\'@
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited (Formerly Known As Blue Star Electro-Mechanical Limited)
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's consolidated balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure.

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, frade receivables and bank balance

b} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash (including Revenue earned in excess of billing) or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables (including Revenue earned in excess of billing).

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financia! assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

> Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

» For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POC!) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. ’

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities heid for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consoclidated baiance sheet

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency/price risk on unexecuted firm commitments
and highly probable forecast transactions. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and
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g. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with

an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

r. Earnings per share
The Company’s Earnings per Share (‘EPS’) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders’ of
the Company.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive shares
outstanding during the year including share based payments, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

s. Segment reporting

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products / services.

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including
inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment
result. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under
unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unaliocable income
4. Segment result includes margins on inter-segment and sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit before tax
of the company.

5. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable assets
and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to any
segment.

Inter-Segment transfer pricing:

Segment revenue resuiting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer
price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed
on a negotiated basis.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings Plar}t & Furl:uture and Vehicles C?fﬁce Computers Total
. Machinery Fixtures Equipments
Particulars
Rs.InLakhs | Rs.In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs.InLakhs | Rs.InLakhs| oMM ealn
Lakhs Lakhs

Cost
At April 1, 2015 - 115.66 0.13 48.06 21.20 1.13 186.18
Additions - 2.07 - 95.22 4.49 - 101.78
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2016 . 117.73 0.13 143.28 25.69 1.13 287.96
Additions 183.86 13.31 - 18.92 5.67 - 221.76
Disposals = - = 5 = - =
At March 31, 2017 183.86 131.04 0.13 162.20 31.36 1.13 509.72
Depreciation
At April 1, 2015 - - - - - 2 c
Depreciation charge for the year
(refer note 27) - 16.33 0.05 28.29 11.63 0.73 57.03
Disposals - - S g = = s
At March 31, 2016 - 16.33 0.05 28.29 11.63 0.73 57.03
Depreciation charge for the year
(refer note 27) 6.55 15.06 0.03 37.48 8.95 0.26 68.33
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2017 6.55 31.39 0.08 65.77 20.58 0.99 125.36
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 177.31 99.65 0.05 96.43 10.78 0.14 384.36
As at March 31, 2016 - 101.40 0.08 114.99 14.06 0.40 230.93
As at April 1, 2015 - 115.66 0.13 48.06 21.20 1.13 186.18

For Property Piant & Equipment existing as on April 1, 2015 i.e. the date of transition to Ind As, the Company has used [ndian GAAP carrying value as deemed

costs.

3 a. Intangible Asset

Software

Rs. In Lakhs
Cost
At April 1, 2015 -
Additions 2.85
Disposals -
At March 31, 2016 2.85
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2017 2.85
Amortisation
At April 1, 2015 -
Amortisation (refer note 27) 0.01
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2016 0.01
Amortisation {refer note 27) 1.12
Disposals =
As at March 31, 2017 113
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 1.72
As at March 31, 2016 2.84

As at April 1, 2015

o,

o

e
— ol

T e
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3b. investment Properties

Rs. In Lakhs
Cost
Opening Balance at April 1, 2015 6,952.30
Additions (subsequent expenditure) 348.88
Disposals =
Closing Balance at March 31,
2016 7,301.18
Additions (subsequent expenditure) -
Adjustment (25.78)
Disposails -
Closing Balance at March 31,
2017 7,275.40
Depreciation
Opening Balance at April 1, 2015 -
Depreciation (refer note 27) 693.55
Disposals -
Closing balance at March 31,
2016 693.55
Depreciation (refer note 27) 622.52
Disposals -
Closing balance at March 31,
2017 1,316.07
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 5,859.33
As at March 31, 2016 6,607.63
At April 1, 2015 6,952.30

For investment properties existing as on April 1, 2015, i.e, its date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has used Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed costs.

Information regarding income and expenditure of investment properties

March 31, March 31, 2016
2017
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Rental income derived from 351.45 376.05
investment properties (refer Note
21)
Direct operating expenses (including (47.97) (104.25)
repairs and maintenance)
generating rental income
Profit arising from investment 303.48 271.80
properties before depreciation and
indirect expenses
Less — Depreciation (refer Note 27) (622.52) (693.55),
Profit/ (Loss) arising from (319.04) (421.75)
investment properties before indirect:

As at March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018, the fair value of the properties are INR 7,349.53 Lakhs and INR 7,177.46 Lakhs respectively. These valuations are
based on the valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment
properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Description of vailuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties

The direct comparison approach involves a comparison of the property to similar properties that have actually been sold in arms — length transactions or are
offered for sale. This approach demonstrates what buyers have historically been willing to pay (and sellers willing to accept) for similar properties in an open
and competitive market and is particularly useful in estimating the value of the land and properties that are typically traded on a unit basis. Statute and case
laws define a market value standard for assessment.

In assessment litigation, under the “rules of evidence” a bona fide sale of the subject property is usually considered the best evidence of market value. In the
absence of a sale of the subject, sales prices of comparable properties are usually considered the best evidence of market value. Consequently, the
comparative sale approach is the preferred approach when sales data are available. The comparative sale approach models the behaviour of the market by
comparing the properties being appraised with similar properties that have recently sold (comparable properties) or for which offers to purchase have been

made.
Comparable properties are selected for similarity to the subject property by way of attributes, such things as the age, size, quality of construction, building

features, condition, design, gentry, etc. Their sale prices are then adjusted for their difference from the subject. Finally a market value for the subject is
estimated from the adjusted sales price of the comparable properties. The economic principles of supply and demand provide a framework for understanding

how the market warks. The interaction of sunnlv and demand factars determines nronertv value.
Fair Value hierarchy disclosures for investment properties have been provided in note 39.
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Reconciliation of fair value:

Investment
Properties
Rs. In Lakhs
Opening balance as at April 1,
2015 7,030.89
Fair value difference 146.57
Closing balance as at March 31,
2016 7.177.46
Fair value difference 172.07
Closing balance as at March 31,
2017 7,349.53

Description of valuation technigues used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

Valuation Significant i
Investment Properties - unobservable Range (Weighted Average)
technique Inputs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
. Estimated rental
Comparative

Band Box House, Worli, Mumbai

Sales Method

value per sq. per
month

INR 125 - INR 140

INR 125 - INR 140

Estimated rental

" Comparative
RamKrishna Chambers, Baroda Sales Method value per sq. per [INR 15-INR 18 INR 15 -INR 18
month
S o Estimated rental
Nityanand, Pune P value per sq. per [INR65-INR 75 INR 65- INR 75

Sales Method

month

Sahas, Prabhadevi, Mumbai

Comparative
Sales Method

Estimated rental
value per sqg. per
month

INR 115- INR 135

INR 115- INR 135
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4 Trade Receivables

Non Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Trade Receivables 46.28 216.50 546.56 5,923.62 4,314.89 3,8962.15
Receivables from other related parties (Note 35) - - - 105.93 105.93 105.93
Total Trade Receivables 46.28 216.50 546.56 6,029.55 4,420.82 4,068.08
Break- up for Security Details:-
Unsecured, considered good 46.28 216.50 546.56 6,029.55 4,420.82 4,068.08
Doubtful . . - 2,335.37 2,090.13 1,883.15
46.28 216.50 546.56 8,364.91 6,510.95 5,951.23
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad &
doubtful debts)
Unsecured considered good - - - - 8 =]
Doubtful - - - (2,335.37) (2,090.13) (1.883.15)
Total Trade Receivables 46.28 216.50 546.56 6,029.55 4,420.82 4,068.08

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

5. Loans |Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied b

y India’s domestic tax rate for:

Particulars

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Accounting profit before tax

Other Comprehensive Income before tax

Total

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 33.063%
Expenses not allowed for tax purpose

Additional allowances for tax purpose

Incomes not to be considered for tax purpose

Ind AS Transitional adjustments impact

Effect of lower tax rate due to application of section
115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 provision as
compared to Normal Tax provision

At effective income tax rate of 36.49% (March 31,
2016: 7.96 %)

Mat credit entilement

Income tax expense reported in the statement of
profit and loss

491.72 52468
(21.28) 2.93
470.44 527.61
155.54 174.44
115.84 -
: (42.26)
5 (14.28)
6.50 (49.77)
(106.20) (26.12)
171.68 42.01
(171.68) (42.01)
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Non Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Loan to Others:
Loan to Employees 20.99 23.38 18.59 14.48 19.86 4.1
Security Deposit 30.04 14.99 11.22 - . 0.38
Total 51.03 38.37 29.81 14.48 19.86 4.49
6 _Income Tax Assets (Net)
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Advance Income Tax {net of provision for taxation) 153.03 352.49 335.94
Total 153.03 352.49 335.94
7 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Deferred Tax Asset arising from :
MAT Credit Entitlement 496.50 324.82 282.80
Net Deferred Tax Assets 496.50 324.82 282.80
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Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset:

Particulars Rs in lakhs
Deferred tax relates to the MAT Credit Entitlement
As at Aprit 1, 2015 282.80
Add: MAT Credit entitlement 42.02
Less: MAT Credit utilisation -
As at March 31, 2016 324.82
As at April 1, 2016 324.82
Add: MAT Credit entitlement 171.68
Less: MAT Credit utilisation -
As at March 31, 2017 496.50

The Company has tax business losses which arose in India of Rs. 5,321.61 lakhs, (March 31, 2016: Rs. 6,341.67 lakhs, April 1, 2015: Rs. 6,533.69 lakhs) that are
available for offsetting for eight years against future taxable profits of the Company in which the losses arose. Majority of losses will expire in March 2020 and
March 2021.

The Company has tax unabsorbed depreciation which arose in India of Rs. 1,468.10 lakhs, (March 31, 2016: Rs. 1,807.02 lakhs, April 1, 2015: Rs. 2,064.22
lakhs) that are available for carried forward till existance and offsetting against future taxable profits of the Company.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits, they have arisen in the Company that
have been loss-making for some time, and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the near future. If the Company were
able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the profit would increase by Rs. 2,244.88 lakhs.

8 Other Non-Current Assets

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Capital Advance E 141.36 -
Balance with Statutory Authorities 139.16 183.71 183.61
Vendor Advance = = 66.83
Total 139.16 325.07 250.44
9 Inventories
{valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Traded Goods 1,613.25 1,928.72 1,569.63
Stores & Spares . . 1.23
Total 1,513.25 1,928.72 1,570.86
Includes Goods in Transit Rs 2.40 lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs 84.82 lakhs, March 31, 2015 :Rs. Nil)
10 Investment
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Investments at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
(i} Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)
Fortis Money Plus Fund - Monthly Dividend
Reinvestment - 0.01 0.01
(Market value of Investment - Rs.1,274/-)
Total . 0.01 0.01
11 _Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 392.85 11.15 1.18
Cash on hand * 4.99 4.83 0.01
Total 397.84 15.98 1.20
For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following :
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Balances with Banks:
On Current Accounts 392.85 11.15 1.19
Cash on hand* 4.99 4.83 0.01
397.84 15.98 1.20
Less : Bank Overdrafts (Refer Note 18) (0.05) (2,169.53) (2,541.07)
Total 397.79 (2,153.55) (2,539.87)

* This represents Cash Imprest given to employees for the purpose of business expenditures.
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12 _Other Financial Assets Non-Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Others
Unbilled Revenue
Project Revenue - - 1,285.46 758.79 958.91
Less: Impairment Allowance E - - (109.98) (89.38) (112.96)
Net Project Revenue - - - 1,175.48 669.41 845.95
AMC - . - 41.40 24.73 9.47
Advances recoverable in cash or kind E - - 116.40 153.25 600.89
Receivable from Related Party - - 35.87 - - -
Total = = 35.87 1,333.28 847.39 1,456.31
Breakup of Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Particulars 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Other Financial Assets 1,333.28 847.39 1,492.18
Loans (Refer Note 5) 65.51 58.24 34.30
Trade Receivables (Refer Note 4) 6,075.82 4,637.32 4,614.65
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 11) 397.84 15.98 1.20
Total Financial Assets Carried at amortised costs 7,872.45 5,558.93 6,142.33
13 Other Current Assets
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Balance with Statutory Authorities 113.64 122.96 271.39
Vendor Advances 330.27 306.18 288.28
Prepaid expenses 117.84 1.76 25.01 -
Project Work in progress 109.70 75.21 134.58 #
Total 671.45 506.10 719.26 (155 w| .
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14 Share Capital

31 March 2017
Rs. In Lakhs

31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs

1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs

Authorised Shares
5,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2 each (March 31,
2016 :5,50,00,000 of Rs.2 each) (April 1, 2015 :

4,50,00,000 of Rs.2 each)
18,00,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference

share of Rs.100 each ( March 31, 2016: 18,00,000 of
Rs. 100 each) {(April 1, 2015: 18,00,000 of Rs. 100
each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up

5,28,25,052 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each (March 31,
2018 : 5,29,25,052 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each) (April
1, 2015 : 3,83,00,052 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each)
(All the above share are held by Blue Star Limited,

the Holding Company and its nominees)
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share

capital

1,100.00

1,800.00

1,100.00

1,800.00

900.00

1,800.00

1,058.50

1,058.50

766.00

1,058.50

1,058.50

766.00

(a) Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning & end of the reporting year

Equity Shares
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
No of shares Rs. in Lakhs No of shares No of shares Rs. In Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 5,29,25,052 1,058.50 3,83,00,052 766.00 3,83,00,052 766.00
Issued during the year (Refer Note 31) - - 1,46,25,000 292.50 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,29,25,052 1,058.50 5,29,25,052 1,058.50 3,83,00,052 766.00

(b) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having par value of Rs.2 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by Holding Company

Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs.InLakhs  Rs.In Lakhs
Blue Star Limited, the Holding Company and Its
Nominees 5,29,25,052 of Rs.2 each fully paid up (
March 2016 : 5,29,25,052 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each
fully paid up) 31 March 2015 : 38,300,052 Equity
Shares of Rs.2 each 1,058.50 1,058.50 766.00

etails o areholders holding more than 5% shares in the Compan
d) Details of Shareholders holding han 5% sh inthe C y

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
Name of Shareholder % Holding Held % Holding % Holding Held
Equity Shares of Rs.2 each fully paid up
Blue Star Ltd. The holding company and it's nominees 100% 5,29,25,052 100% 5,29,25,052 100% 3,83,00,052

As per records of the Company, including it's register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(e) Details of aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash, issued during
the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

No. of No. of No. of Shares
Shares Allotted Shares Allotted Allotted

Equity shares allotted as
Fully paid up to the shareholders of Blue Star Design
and Engineering Limited in accordance with the
scheme of amalaamation (Refer Note 31) 1,46,25,000 1,46,25,000 2
Fully paid up to Blue Star Limited in accordance with

2,84,50,052 2,84,50,052  2,84,50,052

Business Transfer Agreement
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15 Other Equity

Share e i Other
Suspense Capital Reserve sizl:;::s‘s s:::::e: Comprehensive To!tsallfthther
(Refer Note 31) B 9 Income LY,

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

As at 1 April, 2016 - 7,762.48 2,088.87 (6,017.00) 293 3,837.28
Profit for the year = - - 491.72 - 491.72
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - (21.28) (21.28)
Total Comprehensive Income 7,762.48 2,088.87 (5,525.28) (18.35) 4,307.72
As at 31st March 2017 - 7,762.48 2,088.87 (5,525.28) (18.35) 4,307.72
As at 1 April 2015 292 .50 7,762.48 2,088.87 (6,541.68) - 3,602.17
Profit for the year - - - 524.68 - 524.68
QOther Comprehensive Income - - - - 2.93 2.93
Total Comprehensive Income 292.50 7,762.48 2,088.87 (6,017.00) 2.93 4,129.78
Less: Shares Issued during the year 292.50 - - . - 292.50
As at 31st March 2016 - 7,762.48 2,088.87 (6,017.00) 2.93 3,837.28

Capital Reserve

A reserve of a company which is not available for distribution as dividend is classified as capital reserve of the company. The capital reserve recognised in the
financial statements denote the excess of the Net Assets acquired over the amount of consideration transferred in business combination transactions (Please

refer Note 31).

Securities Premium

Where a company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on those shares
shall be transferred to "Securities Premium Reserve”. A company may issue fully paid up bonus shares to its members out of the securities premium reserve and

company can use this reserve for buy-back of shares.

16 _Other Financial Liabilities

Non Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs [ Rs. InLakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer - - - 500.00 181.68 .
Note 18)
Lease Rental Deposit received 86.28 304.97 309.58 216.17 -
86.28 304.97 309.58 716.17 181.68 -
Lease Rental Deposits Received are carried at amortised cost.
17 _Provisions
Non Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In'Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. Tn Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Provision for Employee Benefits -
Provision for gratuity 36.99 41.23 45.79 1.01 1.20 1.18
Provision for leave benefits - - 14.40 176.27 186.13 172.07
Super Annuation Fund - - 14.34 10.35 7.80 39.04
Provision for additional gratuity 2.38 4.90 4.69 0.04 0.41 =
(A) 39.37 46.13 79.22 187.67 195.54 212.29
Other Provisions
Provision for warranties - - - 21.80 21.80 32.75
Provision for loss on orders - - - 3.10 3.10 3.10
(B) - - - 24.90 24.90 35.85
TOTAL (A+B) 39.37 46.13 79.22 212.57 220.44 248.14

Provision for Warranties

Warranty is provided to the customer for a period of 12-24 months from the handling over of the project. A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims
on jobs completed during provision periods, based on past experience of such claims. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on
amount of planned revenue from respective projects. The estimate of such warranty cost are revised annually. The table below gives information about the

movement.

Provision for
warranties

Rs. In Lakhs

At 1 April, 2015

Arising during the year

Utilised during the year

Less: Reversal of Warranty provisions

32.75
21.80

(32?75)

At 31 March 2016

21.80

Arising during the year
Utilised during the year

At 31 March 2017

21.80

Provision for Loss Orders

A Provision for expected loss on construction contract is recognised when it is probable that the contract cost will exceed the total contract
revenue. For all other contracts, loss order provisions are made when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation under the contract exceed

the currently estimated economic benefits.
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18 Borrowings

Non Current Current
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015 | 31 March 2017 [ 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Loan against Properties from Bank (Secured) - 1,804.58 2,489.97 - - -
Term Loan from Bank (Secured) 1,982.25 - - - 5 -
Working Capital Demand Loan (Secured) - - - 1,900.00 1,500.00
Commercial Paper (Unsecured) - - - 2,500.00 -
Buyer's Credit (Secured) - - - 481.93 -
Cash credit (Secured) (Refer Note 11) = - - 0.05 2,169.53 2,541.07
Inter Corporate Loan (Unsecured) - - - - 300.00
Purchase Bill Discounting (Unsecured) - - = - 39.96
Total Borrowings 1,982.25 1,804.58 2,489.97 2,981.98 4,069.53 4,381.03
Aggregate Unsecured Loan (A) - - = 2,500.00 - 339.96
Aggregate Secured Loan (B) 1,982.25 1,804.58 2,489.97 481.98 4,069.53 4,041.07
Total (A+B) 1,982.25 1,804.58 2,489.97 2,981.98 4,069.53 4,381.03

Term Loan (Secured)

Term Loan is repayable in 36 equated monthly installments @9.25% 6M MCLR +0.05% secured against irrecoverable corporate guarantee of Blue Star Limited.

During the year, the Company has modified its loan against properties amounting to Rs.1,986.26 lakhs as existing on March 31, 2016 to accommodate the
changes in the security related conditions; such that the security has been changed from against properties to that against the corporate guarantee of Blue Star
Ltd. This loan modified is not considered as a part of the Statement of Cash Flow.

Commercial paper (Unsecured)

Commercial papers carry average interest rate @ 6.58 % p.a. for the current year. These are repayable within 90 to 180 days from the date of drawdown:.

Cash Credit {Secured)

Secured by all existing and future current and movable assets and irrecoverable Corporate Guarantee of Blue Star Limited. The cash credit is repayable on

demand and carries interest @ 8.7% to 11.00% (31st March 16: 10.55% to 12.75%p.a) {1st April 15 : 12.25% to 12.70% p.a).

Buyers Credit (Secured)

Buyers’ credit are availed for imports payables and are repayable within maximum tenure of 90 days from the date of shipment and carries an average interest @
Libor plus 0.63% & secured against Blue Star Ltd.’s irrecoverable Corporate Guarantee.

19 Trade Payables

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 [ 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
19. A Trade payables
Trade Payables* 3,677.22 2,456.35 2,330.81
Trade Payables (A} 3,577.22 2,456.35 2,330.81
19. B Other Payables
Creditors- Capital Expenditure - 348.88 -
Other Payables (B) - 348.88 =
TOTAL (A+B) 3,577.22 2,805.23 2,330.81

*Refer Note 37 for the disclosure as required by Sectiol

20 Other Current Liabilities

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms
n 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develo|

pment Act, 2006.

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
Interest on Dealer deposit . 0.12 0.12
Unearned revenue (Amount due to customers ) 490.64 349.61 401.45
Advance from customers 1,281.71 1,008.44 1,750.49
Payable to Related Parties 339.32 = -
Others :
VAT/CST payable 8.74 18.69 11.50
TDS payable 31.85 91.61 18.22
Customs Duty Payable 0.85 26.50 -
Others Statutory Dues 11.80 11.21 4.59
Others 64.19 4.36 48.54
2,229.20 1,510.54 2,234.91
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21 Revenue from operations

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

Revenue from operations

Sale of Traded Goods 11,477.86 7,981.32
Services rendered 2,380.11 1,590.77
Revenue from construction contracts (Refer Note 38) 2,613.21 1,440.22
Rental income 351.45 376.05
Other Operating Revenue (Refer Note 21a) 1,207.75 1,853.29
Revenue from operations 18,030.38 13,241.65

21a Details of Other Operating Revenue

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Commission 864.99 756.50
Provisions & Liabilities no longer required, written back 181.04 494.00
Shared Service & Income from miscellaneous work 161.72 558.79
Allowances for doubtful debts and advances written back (net) - 44.00
1,207.75 1,853.29

22a Other income

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs

Exchange Difference (net)

Rs. In Lakhs

51.15

51.15

22b Finance income

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Interest on Income Tax refund 69.43 17.29
Interest on Others 25.60 0.84
Interest on Financial Assets 23.84 23.70
118.87 41.83

23 Cost of materials consumed and project related costs

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Cost of materials consumed and project related costs (Refer Note 2,319.96 1,266.18
42)
Total Cost of Material Consumed and project related costs 2,319.96 1,266.18

24 Purchase of traded goods

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Purchase of traded goods 8,118.09 6,270.87
8,118.09 6,270.87

25 Changes in stock of traded goods

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Inventories at the end of the year
Traded Goods 1,513.25 1,928.72
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded Goods 1,928.72 1,569.63
415.47 (359.09)
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26 Employee Benefit F-;

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and other Funds
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 32}

Other employment benefits

Staff welfare expenses

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
[ Rs.InLakhs | KRs.InLakhs |
2,273.65 2.005.05
17.81 119.49
29,31 41.42
35.14 49.03
59.86 49.46
2,515.77 2,264.45

Note: The holding company, Blue Star Limited, has issued stock options to 2 employees of the Company
for which the holding company has incurred cost of Rs. 7.49 lacs (2015-16: Rs. 13.40 lacs).

27 Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Depreciation of Investment Properties {Refer Note 3b} 622.52 693.55
Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer Note 3) 68.33 57.03
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 3a) 1.12 0.01
691.97 750.59

28 Finance Cost

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Interest on debts & borrowings b55.67 707.57
Exchange differences (net) 25.44 -
Bank charges {Refer Note 42) 58.48 17.90
639.59 72547

29 Other expenses

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Stores Consumed 0.26 0.94
Maintenance, Installation and Service Charges (Refer Note 42) 642.06 379.64
Shared Senices 897.77 658.84
Rent and Hire charges (Refer Note 42} 56.06) 49.33
Rates & taxes {Refer Note 42) 132.87 13.18
Power and fuel (Refer Note 42) - 1.09 0.81
Insurance (Refer Note 42} 2453 18.72
Repairs and Maintenange
Buildings | 14.72 91,24
Plant and Machinery - 1.90
Others 7.72 5.98
Advertising and Publicity 3227 28.86
.|Commission on Sales 8.82 3.20
Freight Qutwards (Refer Note 42) 44.66 10.89
Travelling and conveyance (Refer Note 42} 441.13 372.30
Communication costs (Refer Note 42) 78.60 63.02
Conference and Entertainment Expenses 18.63 15.49
Printing and stationery {Refer Note 42) 12.33 14.35
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note 42) 115.10 138.57
Director's Sitting Fees 0.50 0.20
Payment to auditor (Refer details below) 16.31 12.68
Donations - 1.41
Bad debts / advances written off 11.28 392.95
Less: Provision for doubtful debts written back - {392.95)
Altowances for doubtful debts and advances (net) 342.13 -
Exchange Difference (net) 41.95 -
Miscellzanecus expenses 15.83 9.95
2,956.63 1,891.48

Payment to auditors {excluding service tax)

As auditor:
Audit fees
Limited review
Reimbursement of expenses

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
13.00 12.00
2.00 -
1.31 0.68
16.31 12.68
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30. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported values of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Project revenue and costs

The percentage-of-completion method places considerable importance on accurate estimates of the extent of progress towards
completion and may involve estimates on the scope of deliveries and services required for fuffilling the contractually defined
obligations. These significant estimates include total contract costs, total contract revenues, contract risks, including technical,
political and regulatory risks, and other judgments. The Company re-assesses these estimates on periodic basis and makes
appropriate revisions accordingly.

Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit) that can be

recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India,
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for
the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets
The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company

uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting year.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated

irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical
experiences. individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not be collectible.
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31. Business Combinations

I. Acquisition of Professional Electronics and Industrial System from Blue Star Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) for the acquisition of Professional
Electronics and Industrial System (PE&IS) business from Blue Star Limited, the Holding Company effective from March 31, 2015
upon receipt of the consent from the members of the Company.

Pursuant to the said BTA, the Company has purchased PE&IS business on a going concern and “as-is-where-is” basis by way of
slump sale. The Company has discharged the purchase consideration amounting to Rs. 11,050 lakhs by issuing 2,84,50,052 fully
paid up equity shares of Rs 2 each at a premium of Rs. 36.84 per share.

Transition to Ind-AS (Refer Note 43)

In accordance with the provisions of Ind-AS 101 related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind-AS accounting
for business combinations entered prospectively on and after 31st March 2015. Accordingly the Company has restated its purchase
of PE & IS business effected on 31st March 2015. In consequence of the above, the Company has recorded assets and liabilities
acquired pertaining to PE&IS business, at their respective book values. The shares issued as part of purchase consideration have
been recorded at nominal values, thereby derecognising the securities premium previously created on the issue of the shares.
Further, the Company has also derecognised the goodwill amounting to Rs. 8,088.62 lakhs, and the excess of net assets over the
purchase consideration amounting to Rs. 2,113.19 lakhs has been credited to Capital Reserve Account.

1. Amalgamation of Blue Star Design and Engineering Limited (BSDEL) with Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited
{Company)

Pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation under the provisions of Section 391 and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 approved by the
shareholders of BSDEL and the Company, and subsequently sanctioned by the Honorable High Court at Mumbai on December 18,
2015, the entire business undertaking, assets and liabilities of BSDEL have been transferred to and vested in the Company with
retrospective effect i.e. February 1, 2015 being the ‘appointed date’.

The operations of BSDEL include providing of engineering services in the field of refrigerators and air conditioning, heating and
ventilation and also providing properties on rental basis.

The amalgamation has been accounted for under the "Purchase” method as prescribed by AS - 14 ‘Accounting for Amalgamations’.
Accordingly, the accounting treatment has been given as under-.

a. 1,46,25,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each of the Company have been issued to the shareholders of BSDEL on February 2, 2016 as
a part of purchase consideration.

b. The amalgamation has been accounted under the “Purchase Method” as per the then prevailing Accounting Standard 14-
Accounting for Amalgamations, as referred to in the scheme of Amalgamation approved by the High Court, which is different from
Ind-AS 103 “Business Combinations”.

¢. The excess of fair value of net assets over fair value of shares issued and book value of cumulative redeemable preference
shares of BSDEL cancelled has been treated as capital reserve in the books of the Company.

d. The accounts of BSDEL for the year ended March 31, 2015 were finalised as separate entity. In the current financial statement of
BSEEL for year ended March 31, 2017, the effective date of amalgamation is the appointed date as per court scheme i.e., February
01, 2015. Accordingly, the accounting for amalgamation is effective from February 01, 2015.

e. Assets acquired and Liabilities assumed:

The fair values of the identifiable assets and the liabilities of BSDEL as at the date of acquisition were:

Fair Value
recognised on
acquisition
Rs. In Lakhs

Assets
Investment Properties 7,057.00
Investment ) 0.01
Long-term Loans and Advances 102.71
Trade Receivables 746.63
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.62
Short-Term Loans and Advances 1,147.99

9,054.96
Liabilities
Other Long Term Liabilities 311.58
Long-term Provisions 36.71
Short-Term Borrowings 472.75
Trade Payables 2.48
Other Current Liabilities 473.99
Short-Term Provisions 15.66

1,313.17
Total Identifiable net assets at fair value (A) 7,741.79
1. Cancellation of investment in preference shares of 1,800.00
BSDEL
2. Purchase Consideration: Equity Shares 1,46,25,000 292.50
of Rs. 2 each L
Total Consideration (B) 2,092.50 .
|Capital Reserve (A- B) 5,649.29 e
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32.Employee Benefit Disclosure

I.Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount of Rs 117.81 Lakhs (31 March 2016 : Rs 76.31 lakhs) is recognized as an expense and included in " Employee Benefit expense” (Refer Note 26} in
the statement of Profit & Loss.

I.Defined Benefit Plans
a. Gratuity
The Company makes annual contribution to Blue Star Employees Gratuity Fund, which is a final funded salary defined benefit plan for qualifying employees.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

The fund formed by the Company manages the investments of the Gratuity fund. Market volatility, changes n inflation and interest rates, rising longetivity,
plan administration expense and regulatory

changes are just some of the factors that create financial risk in defined benefit plans. If not managed, defined benefit plan risk will impact credit ratings,
access to capital, share prices and plans for growth, as well as divert attention and valauble resources from core business strategy to pension issues. As the
plan assets include investments mainly in public sector undertakings, state government securities and investments with the approived insurance company,
the company’s exposure to equity market risk is minimal.

Expected rate of return on investments is determined based on the assessment made by the Company at the beginning of the year on the return expected
on its existing portfolio, along with the estimated incremental investments to be made during the year. Yield on portfolio is calculated based on a suitable
mark-up over the benchmark Government securities of similar maturities. The Company expects to contribute Rs. 74.40 lakhs to gratuity fund in 2017-18 (

31March 2016 : Rs 54.57 lakhs.)

Disclosure Information :
Change in Present Value of Defined Benefit

Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Un-Funded) Additional Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Rs. In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
Defined Benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 373.07 313.62 42.42 38.23 5.31 4.69
Defined Benefit obligations taken over on amalgamation - - - 8.75 - -
Service cost
a. Current Service Cost 22.61 24.01 4.19 16.15 0.16 0.52
Interest Expense 25.57 24.52 2.66 3.39 0.39 -
Cash Flow
a. Benefits payments from Planned assets (74.40) (14.15) - - - -
b. Benefits payments from Employer - - (14.58) (8.22) (1.05) (0.10)
Remeasurements
a. Due to change in financial assumptions 7.50 0.31 0.43 0.41 0.07 -
b. Due to experience adjustments (29.95) 24.76 2.88 (15.29) (2.47) 0.20
Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 324.40 373.07 38.00 42.42 2.41 5.31
Change in fair value of plan assets
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Un-Funded) Additional Gratuity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Rs. In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
Fair Value of the plan asset at the beginning of the year 375.03 316.63 - - - -
Interest income 25,72 26.66 - - - -
Cash flows
a. Total employer contributions
(i) Employer contributions - 49.52 - - - -
(i) Employer direct benefit payments - - 14.58 9.22 1.05 0.10
b. Benefit payments from plan assets (74.40) (14.15) - - - -
c. Benefit payments from employer - - (14.58) (9.22) (1.05) (0.10)
Remeasurements
a. Return on assets (excluding interest income) (1.63) (3.63) - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 324.72 375.03 - - -
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Components of defined benefit cost

Gratuity (Funded)

Gratuity (Un-Funded)

Additional Gratuity

Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Rs. In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs [ Rs. In Lakhs
Service Cost
a. Current service cost 22.61 24.01 4.19 16.16 0.16 0.52
Total service cost 22.61 24.01 4.18 16.15 - -
Net interest cost
a. Interest expense on DBO 25.57 24,52 2.66 3.39 0.39 -
b. Interest {(income) on plan assets (25.72) (26.66) - - -
Total net interest cost (0.15) (2.14) 2.66 3.39
Remeasurements of Other Long Term Benefits - - - - - -
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 22.46 21.87 6.85 19.54 0.55 0.52
Remeasurements (recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Un-Funded) Additional Gratuity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Particulars Rs. In Lakhs | Rs.InLakhs | Rs.In Lakhs [ Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
a. Due to change in financial assumptions 7.50 0.31 0.43 0.41 0.07 -
b. Due to change in experience adjustments (29.95) 2476 2.88 (15.29) (2.47) 0.20
¢. (Return) on plan assets (excl. interest income) 1.63 3.63 - - - -
d. (Return) on reimbursement rights - - - - - -
e. Changes in asset ceiling/onerous liability - - - - - -
Total remeasurements in OCI (20.82) 28.70 3.31 (14.88) (2.40) 0.20
Total defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI 1.64 50.57 10.16 4.66 (1.85) 0.72
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Un-Funded) Additional Gratuity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Rs. In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
Defined benefit obligation 324.40 373.07 38.00 42,42 242 5.31
Fair value of plan assets 324.72 375.03 - - - 3
Funded status (0.32) (1.96) 38.00 42.42 2.42 5.31
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) {0.32) (1.96) 38.00 42.42 2.42 5.31
Net defined benefit liability (asset) reconciliation
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Un-Funded) Additional Gratuity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Rs. In Lakhs [ Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs | Rs.In Lakhs [ Rs. In Lakhs
Net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the
year (1.96) (3.01) 42.42 46.98 5.31 4.69
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 22.46 21.87 6.85 19.54 0.55 0.52
Total remeasurements included in OC| (20.82) 28.70 3.31 (14.88) (2.40) 0.20
Cash flows
a. Employer contributions - (49.52) - - - -
b. Employer direct benefit payments - - (14.58) (9.22) (1.05) {0.10)
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) as of end of the
year (0.32) {1.96) 38.00 42.42 2.41 5.31
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

31 March 31 March 1 April
Particulars 2017 2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 10.48 - 3.89
Insurance company products 118.98 98.29 =
Others 195.26 276.74 312.74
Total 324.72 375.03 316.63

The Principal assumptions used in determining gratu

ity for the company's plan are is shown as below:

Gratuity (Funded)

Additional Gratuity

31 March 31 March 1 April 31 March 31 March 1 April
Actuarial Assumptions 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
Discount Rate 7.30% 7.57% 8.00% 7.30% 7.57% 8%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.30% 8.00% 8.00% - - =
Mortality Rate IALM-2006-08 [IALM-2008 LIC(1994-96) |IALM-2006-08 |IALM-2006-08 |LIC(1994-96)
Salary escalation rate (Management-staff) 6%,2% 6%.,2% 6%,2% 6%,2% - -
Attrition Rate 1% throughout [1% throughout |1% throughout |1% throughout [1% throughout [1% throughout|

Gratuity (Unfunded)

31 March 31 March 1 April
Actuarial Assumptions 2017 2016 2015
Discount Rate 7.30% 7.57% 8.00%
Rate of return on plan assets - - -
Mortality Rate IALM-2008 1ALM-2008 LIC(1994-96)
Salary escalation rate 7% 7% 7%

Attrition Rate

3% 2% 1%

3% 2% 1%

3% 2% 1%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2017 is shown as
Gratuity Additional
{Funded) Gratuity
31 March 31 March
2017 2017
Assumptions Rs. In Lakhs | Rs. In Lakhs
Discount Rate
Discount Rate - 50 Basis Points 339.14 2.55
Assumption 6.80% 6.80%
Discount Rate + 50 Basis Points 310.75 2.29
Assumption 7.80% 7.80%
Salary Increase Rate
Salary Rate - 50 Basis Points 311.25 242
Assumption Vary by Vary by
Employee type j[Employee type
Salary Rate + 50 Basis Points 338.47 2.42
Assumption Vary by Vary by
Employee type |Employee type

below:

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year 2016-17.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year 2016-17 is 12 years.

Il. General Description of significant defined plans;
1. Gratuity Plan

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on separation /retirement based on 15 days last drawn salary for each completed years of service after

continous service for 5 years.

2. Additional Gratuity

Additional Gratuity is payable as per the specific rules of the Company i.e Rs. 5,000/ for staff and Rs.10,000/- for Managers subject to qualifying service for

15 years.
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33.Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations;

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, 491.72 524.68
of the company
Weighted average number of equity 5,29,25,052 5,29,25,052
shares in calculating basic and diluted
EPS
Basic and dituted Earnings per share 0.93 0.98

34. Segment Information

A. Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segment)

The Company's business segments are organized around product lines as under :

a.  Plumbing & Fire-fighting systems including contracting business of engineering, construction, installation, commissioning and after sales service

b. Professional Electronics and Industrial Systems includes trading and services for industrial products and systems, Matenial Testing Equipment & Systems (Destructive
INon-destructive), Data Communication Products & Services, Testing & Measuring Instruments and Healthcare Systems

c.  Providing properties on Rent

The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating resuits of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

Segment Revenues, Resuits and other Information :

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
l.Segment Revenue
i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems 516.31 1,606.28
ii. Professional Electronics and Industrial
Systems 17,101.85 11,259.32
iii. Renting of properties 412.12 376.05
Total Segment Revenue 18,030.38 13,241.65
Add: Other income - 51.15
Add: Finance Income 118.87 41.83
TOTAL Income 18,149.25 13,334.63
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

il. Segment Result
i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems (267.41) 421.59
ii. Professional Electronics and Industrial
Systems 2,491.42 1,354.05
ili. Renting of properties {360.74) (394.62)
Total Segment Result 1,863.27 1,381.02
Less: i) Finance cost 639.59 725.47

if) Other un-allocable Expenditure

Net of un-allocable Income 731.96 130.87
Total Profit Before Taxation and
Exceptional item 491.72 524.68
Profit before taxation 491.72 524.68
Provision for taxes - =
Net Profit After Tax 491.72 524.68
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Il Other Information

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

A. Segment Assets
i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems 1,407.90 2,050.29 3,420.85
ii. Professional Electronics and Industrial
Systems 8,316.03 6,270.38 5,150.55
iii. Renting of properties 6,465.27 6,800.19 7,248.20
Total Segment Assets 16,189.20 15,120.86 15,819.60
Add: Un-allocable Corporate Assets 1,002.06 718.02 622.23
Total Segment Assets 17,191.26 15,838.88 16,441.83
B. Segment Liabilities
i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems 1,022.29 1,021.82 2,876.10
it. Professional Electronics and Industrial
Systems 4,956.63 3,151.28 2,248.50
iit. Renting of properties 413.46 702.85 3,056.38
Total Segment Liabilities 6,392.38 4,875.95 8,180.98
Add: Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 5,432.66 6,067.15 3,892.68
Total Liabilities 11,825.04 10,943.10 12,073.66

C. Capital Expenditure {including

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Capital WIP) Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems - -

ii. Professional Electronics and Industrial

Systems 3493 101.78

ii. Renting of properties - 348.88

iv. Unallocable 186.83 2.85
221,76 453.51

D. Depreciation

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems 6.55 -

it. Professional Electronics and Industrial
|Systems 60.88 57.04
iii. Renting of properties 622.51 693.54
Other Unallocable 2.03 0.01
Total 691.97 750.59
E. Non Cash Item Other than

Depreciation

i. Plumbing & Fire-fighting Systems 66.71 50.34
ii. Professional Electronics and Industrial

Systems 233.63 118.48
iii. Renting of properties 6.44 =
Other Unaliocable - -
Total 306.78 168.82
B. S dary infor

Secondary segmental reporting is based on the geographical location of customer. The geographical
segments have been disclosed based on revenues within India (sales to customers in India) and revenues
outside India (sales to customer located outside India.)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

Revenue (Sales, Service & Commission)

by Geographical Market

India 15,538.40 12,436.66 -

Outside India 2,491.98 804.99 -

Total 18,030.38 13,241.65 S

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets

& Intangible Asset

India 15,757.39 15,269.79 15,657.43

Outside India 1,433.87 569.09 784.40

Total 17,191.26 15,838.88 16,441.83

Capital Expenditure including Capital

Work in Progress

India 221.76 453.51 -

Outside India - = =

Total 221.76 453.51 =
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35. Related party disclosure

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where controls exists
Holding Company Blue Star Limited

Name of other refated party with whom transactions have taken place during the
year
Fellow Subsidiary Blue Star Qatar LLC

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties
for the relevant financial year:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Transactions with related party Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Purchase of material:-
Blue Star Limited 14.73 105.71 -
Sale of material;-
Blue Star Limited 79.33 325.64 -
Consultancy Charges
Blue Star limited - 82.12 =
Reimbursement of expenses:-
Blue Star Limited 930.39 729.98 .
Recovery of expenses:~ .
Blue Star Limited 434.38 725.90 -

Interest expenses:-
Blue Star Limited - 8.14 -

Loan repaid during the year:-
Blue Star Limited - 300.00 -

Rent income received during the year
Blue Star Limited 24460 261.13 =

Balance receivable-Sundry debtors
Blue Star Qatar LLC 105.93 105.93 105.93

Corporate Guarantee outstanding - -
Blue Star Limited 10,500.00 7,300.00 8,000.00
Balance due -creditors:-
Blue Star Limited 524.94 27.12 498.25
Issue of Shares :-
Blue Star Limited - 292.50 -

Terms and conditions of tranaction with related parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s

length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2016:Rs.Nil, April 1, 2015:Rs.Nil).

36. Capital and other commitments
At March 31, 2017, the Company has commitments of Rs.Nil (March 31, 2016 : Rs.36.64 Lakhs) (March 31,2015 : Rs. NIL) against which no provision has been made in
current year.

37. As per requirement of Section 22 of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
("the Act"] following information is disclosed:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

(a) (i) The Principal amount remaining

unpaid to any supplier at the end of - - 15.49

accounting year

(i) The interest due on above - - 0.63

(b) Amount of interest paid by the buyer
in terms of section 16 of the Act.
[{C] The amount of interest due and
payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but
beyond the due date during the year but
without adding the interest specified
under this Act)

(d) The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of each 063 0.63 0.63
accounting year.

(e} The amount of further interest
remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of MSMED
Act, 2006

0.63 0.63 0.63

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises’ on the basis of information available with the Company.
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38. Disclosure in terms of Indian Accounting Standard 11 on the Accounting of Construction Contracts is as under:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

{. Contract revenue recognised as
revenue in the year (Refer Note 21) 26132 1440122
Il For Contracts that are in progress as
on March 31
A) Contract costs incurred and 11,037.59 8,339.87
recognized profits (Less Recognised
losses) up to the reporting date
B) Advances received 415.84 476.65
C) Gross amount due from customers for 830.91
Contract Work* 1,392.07 )
D) Gross amount due to customers for 16.14
Contract Work 108.93 :
E) Retention amount 207.69 388.27

“Includes reduction of imminent loss of Rs. 3.09 lakhs (31st March, 2016: Rs. 3.09 lakhs)

39.Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2017:

Fair value using
Significant Significant
Particulars Date of valuation Quoted prices in| observable unobservable
Total active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3}
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment Properties (Refer note 3b) 31 March 2017 7,349.53 - 7,349.53 -
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
Quantitative disclosures fair value t hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2016:
Fair value ement using
Significant Significant
Particulars e Quoted prices in| observable unobservable
Date of valuatiol
eloda Total active markets inputs inputs
{Levet 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment Properties (Refer note 3b) 31 March 2016 7.177.46 - 7.177.46 -
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Leve! 2 during the period.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 1 April 2015:
Fair value meast t using
Significant Significant
Particulars " Quoted prices in| observable unobservable
Date of valuation :
Total active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1} {Level 2) {Level 3)
Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment Properties (Refer note 3b) 1 April 2015 7.030.89 - 7,030.89 -

There have been no fransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

40. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of short and long tenured borrowings, trade & other payables and deposits. Most of these liabilities relate to financing
Company’s working capital cycle. The Company has trade and other receivables, loans and advances that arise directly from its operations. The Company also enters into
hedging transactions to caver foreign exchange exposure risk,

The Company is accordingly exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company's policies and overall risk
appetite, All foreign currency hedging activities for risk management purposes are carried out by a specialist treasury team that have the appropriate skills, experience and
supervision. In addition, independent views from bankers and currency market experts are obtained periodically to validate risk mitigation decisions. It is the Company's policy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

The Risk Committee and the Audit Committee review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency rate
risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate movement,

The Company uses derivative financiaf instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company
transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily US Dollars and Euro. The Company has foreign currency trade payables including buyer's credit and
receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts towards hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upon the primary host contract
requirement and risk management strategy of the company.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as per its established risk management policy.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD, Eurc and other currencies to the functional currency of the Company, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign currency derivatives.

e Effect on profit before tax Effect on Equity
Particulars changeiin °”;::°y 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

AED 5% 0.18 0.09 0.18 0.08

5% (0.18) (0.09) (0.18) (0.09)
CAD 5% 3.58 0.09 3.58 0.08

-5% (3.58) (0.09) (3.58) (0.09)
EUR 5% 257 (3.07) 2.57 (9.07)

-5% (2.57) 9.07 (2.57) 9.07
GBP 5% 0.66 1.63 0.66 1.63

5% (0.66) (1.63) (0.66) (1.63)
JPY

5% 0.18 117 0.18 1.17

-5% (0.18) (1.17) (0.18) (1.17)
usb

5% 7.56 (3.48) 7.56 (3.48)

-5% (7.56) 3.48 {7.56) 3.48

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company's exposure

to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt interest obligations. Further, the Company engages in financing activities at market
linked rates and therefore, any changes in the domestic or global interest rates environment may impact future rates of borrowing. To manage this risk, the management
maintains a robust portfolio mix of multiple borrowing products. Buyers credit is used as a financing mechanism provided the fully hedged cost of financing through this
product results in cost lower than the INR cost based borrowing. Dynamic switching between various financing products coupled with a short maturity profile of the borrowing
helps mitigate the interest rate risk adequately.

Interest Rate Sensitivity of Borrowings

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the borrowings.
The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

Effect on profit .
L Increase/Decrease in Effect on Equity
Interest Rate Sensitivity basis Point beforTat::s()Rs. In (Rs. In lakhs)
For the year ended March 31, 2017
INR- Borrowings +100 54.51 54.51
-100 (54.51) (54.51)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
INR- Borrowings +100 60.50 60.50
-100 (60.50) (60.50)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments.

1. Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit term in line with respective industry norms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Past due but not impaired Total
Less than 1 year More than1 year
Trade Receivable as at 31st March 2017
6,029.55 46.28 6,075.83
Trade Receivable as at 31st March 2016
4,420.82 216.50 4,637.32

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. Refer Note 4 for details on the impairment of trade receivables.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses, The
Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet it cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and
deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans, debt, and overdraft from both domestic and international banks at an
optimised cost. It also enjoys strong access to domestic across various debt and hybrid instruments

The table below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As of March 31, 2017
Farticulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Borrowings 3,481.98 1,982.25 5,464.23
Trade Payables 3,677.22 - 3.577.22
Other financial liabilities 216.17 86.28 302.45
Total 7,275.37 2,068.53 9,343.90
Particulars As of March 31, 2016
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Borrowings 4,251.21 1,804.58 6,055,79
Trade Payables 2,456.35 = 2,456.35
Other Payables 348.88 a 348.88
Other financial liabilities - 304.97 304.97
Total 7,056.44 2,109.58 9,165.99

41, Capital management

Capital includes equity atiributable to the equity holders of the Company and net debt.

Primary objective of Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an optimum financing structure and heaithy returns in order to support its business and
maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, in light of the changes in economic conditions or business requirements,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents,

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Borrowings (Note 16 & 18) 5,464.23 6,055.79 6,871.00
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note
11) 397.84 15.98 1.20
Net debt (A) 5,066.39 6,039.81 6,369.80
Equity 5,366.22 4,895.78 4,368.17
Total capital (B) 5,366.22 4,895.78 4,368.17
Capital and net debt (A+B) 10,432.61 10,935.59 11,237.97
Gearing ratio 0.49 0.55 0.61

42. Aggregation of expenses disclosed in Project cost, Finance Cost and Other expenses vide note 23, 28 and 29 in respect of specific items is as follows:

[Nature of Expenses Note 23 Note 28 Note 29 Total
Amount In Amount In
Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Maintenance, Installation and Service 745.07
Charges 103.01 - 642.06 K
- 2 (379.64) (379.64)
Rent and Hire Charges - - 56.06 56.06
(0.58) F (49.33) (49.91)
Power & fuel 0.0 - .09 1.10
0.17) - (0.81) {0.98)
Insurance 1.8 = 24.5 26.44
(14.52) - (18.72) (33.24)
Travelling & conveyance 5.3 - 441, 446.46
(3.46) = (372.30) (375.76)
Printing & stationery 0.73 - 12.33 13.06
(6.92) . (14.35) (21.27)
Legal & professional fees 39.62 - 115.10 154.72
(79.30) . (138.57) (217.87)
Rates and Taxes 7.84 = 132.87 140.71
(45.23) ¥ (13.16) (58.39) EET
Communication Expenses .15 = 78.60 78.75
(2.39) - (63.02) (65.41)
Freight Outwards .07 = 44.66 45.74
(3.72) - (10.89) (14.60)
Bank Charges 0.37 58.48 = 58.85
(2.40) (17.90) - (20.30)

Figures in brackets are for previous year
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43  First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first, the Company has prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. For the periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on
March 31, 2017, together with the comparative date as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the
summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance
sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal
adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at
April 1, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Exemptions applied

1 In accordance with the provisions of Ind-AS 101 related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind-AS
accounting for business combinations entered prospectively on or after 31st March 2015. Accordingly the Company has
restated its purchase of PE & IS business effected on 31st March 2015, in order to be compliant with the requirements of
ind AS 103 on Business Combinations (refer note 31).

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under
Ind AS. Accordingly, the Company has availed the exemption allowed by Ind-AS 103 on Business Combinations for the
business combination of Blue Star Design and Engineering Limited (BSDEL) with Blue Star Engineering and Electronics
Limited (BSEEL), the appointed date for the said transaction being February 1, 2015 (refer note 31). The above referred
business combination with BSDEL has been accounted by using the purchase method as per the then prevailing
accounting standard 14~ 'Accounting for Amalgamation', as referred to in the scheme of Amalgamation approved by the
High Court, which is different from the accounting treatment prescribed under Ind-AS 103 on Business Combination. The
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as a part of the business combination with BSDEL have been continued in
Ind-AS compliant financial statements similar to that in Indian GAAP. The Company did not recognise or exclude any
previously recognised amounts as a result of Ind AS recognition requirements.

2 Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of
its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial
as deemed cost at the transition date.

Estimates
The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance
with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from the following item where

application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation:
1 Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with ind AS reflect conditions at the April 1,
2015, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of March 31, 2016.
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Reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 (date of transition to ind-AS)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Additions/
Note Eliminations Previous Indian
PARTICULARS No pursuant to BSDEL 2 GAAP after
Previous | Amalgamation months impact of
Indian GAAP | (Refer Note 31) | transactions amalgamation | Adjustments Ind-AS
A. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 186.18 - - 186.18 - 186.18
Capital and Work in Progress 0.37 - - 0.37 - 0.37
Investment Properties - 7,057.00 (104.70) 6,952.30 - 6,952.30
Intangible Assets G 8,088.62 - - 8,088.62 (8,088.62) -
intangible Assets under development 1.35 - - 1.35 - 1.35
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables A 603.52 - - 603.52 (56.96) 546.56
(i) Loans D 26.29 - - 26.29 3.52 29.81
(ii)Other Financial Assets - 35.87 - 35.87 - 35.87
Income Tax Assets (Net) 285.07 (14.78) 65.65 335.94 - 335.94
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) - 282.80 - 282.80 - 282.80
Other non-current assets 183.60 66.84 - 250.44 - 250.44
Total Non Current Assets 9,375.00 7,427.73 (39.05) 16,763.68 (8,142.06) 8,621.62
2. Current Assets
Inventories F 1,850.04 - - 1,850.04 (279.18) 1,570.86
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 1,800.00 (1,799.99) - 0.01 - 0.01
(i) Loans 4.01 - 048 4.49 - 4.49
(iii) Trade Receivables B 4,330.10 558.31 (418.06) 4,470.35 (402.27) 4,068.08
(iv) Cash and cash Equivalents 0.57 0.62 0.01 1.20 - 1.20
(v) Other Financial Assets B 1,564.66 4.61 - 1,669.27 (112.96) 1,456.31
Other Current Assets 672.05 57.04 {9.83) 719.26 - 719.26
Total Current Assets 10,221.43 (1,179.41) (427.40) 8,614.62 (794.41) 7,820.21
TOTAL ASSETS 19,596.43 6,248.32 {466.45) 25,378.30 (8,936.47) 16,441.83
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY
Equity Share Capita! 766.00 - - 766.00 - 766.00
Other Equity A-G 6,712.83 5,941.78 (117.97) 12,536.64 (8,934.47) 3,602.17
Total Equity 7,478.83 5,941.78 (117.97) 13,302.64 (8,934.47) 4,368.17
2. Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings - - 2,489.97 2,489.97 - 2,489.97
(i) Other Financial Liabilities E - 311.58 - 311.58 (2.00) 309.58
Provisions 41.88 36.71 063 79.22 - 79.22
Total Non-current liabilities 41.88 348.29 2,490.60 2,880.77 (2.00) 2,878.77
3. Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 6,739.09 472.20 (2,830.26) 4,381.03 - 4,381.03
(ii) Trade Payables 2,307.17 17.91 574 2,330.81 - 2,330.81
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 188.32 (188.32) - - - %
Provisions 247.90 0.24 - 248.14 - ' 248.14
Other Current Liabilities 2,593.24 (343.78) (14.56) 2,234.91 - 2,234.91
Total Current liabilities 12,075.72 (41.75) {2,839.08) 9,194.89 - 9,194.89
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,596.43 6,248.32 (466.45) 25,378.30 (8,936.47) 16,441.83
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Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016

(Rs. in lakhs)
PARTICULARS Previous Ind-AS
Note |indian GAAP|  Adjustments Ind-AS

A. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 230.93 230.93
Investment Properties 6,607.63 - 6,607.63
Intangible Assets G 8,091.46 (8,088.62) 2.84
Intangible Assets under develapment 1.35 - 1.35
Financial Assets

-Trade Receivables A 252,68 (36.18) 216.50

-Loans D 34.45 3.92 38.37

-Other Financial Assets - - -
Income Tax Assets 352.49 - 352.49
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 324.82 - 324.82
Other non-current assets 325.07 325.07
Total Non Current Assets 16,220.88 (8,120.88) 8,100.00
2. Current Assets
inventories F 2,078.09 (149.37) 1,928.72
Financial Assets

-tnvestment 0.01 0.01

-Loans 19.86 - 19.86

-Trade Receivables B 4,683.92 (263.10) 4,420.82

-Cash and cash Equivalents 15.98 - 15.98

-Other Financial Assets B 936.78 (89.39) 847.39
Other Current Assets 506.10 - 506.10
Total Current Assets 8,240.74 (501.86) 7,738.88
TOTAL ASSETS 24,461.62 (8,622.74) 15,838.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 1,058.50 - 1,058.50
Other Equity A-G 12,459.21 (8,621.93) 3,837.28
Total Equity 13,517.71 (8,621.93) 4,895.78
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

-Borrowings 1,804.58 - 1,804.58

-Other Financial Liabilities (= 305.78 (0.81) 304.97
Long Term Provisions 46.13 - 46.13
Total Non-current liabilities 2,156.49 {0.81) 2,155.68
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

-Borrowings 4,069.53 - 4,069.53

-Trade Payables 2,456.35 - 2,456.35

-Other Payables 348.88 348.88

-Other Current Financial Liabilities 181.68 181.68
Provisions 220.44 220.44
Other Current Liabilities 1,510.54 1,5610.54
Total Current liabilities 8,787.42 - 8,787.42
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,461.62 (8,622.74) 15,838.88
Reconciliation of profit for the year ended March 31, 2016

Previous Ind-AS
FARMCURARS Note [Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind-AS
INCOME
Revenue from operations B E 13,058.75 182.90 13,241.65
Other Income 51.15 - 51.15
Finance income AD 18.13 23.70 41.83
Total Revenue (I) 13,128.03 206.60 13,334.63
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed and project related
costs 1,266.18 - 1,266.18
Purchase of traded goods 6,270.87 - 6,270.87
(Increase) / Decrease in stock of traded goods F (229.34) (129.75) (359.09)
Employee benefits expense C,D 2,259.85 4.60 2,264.45
Depreciation & Amartisation Expenses 750.59 - 750.59
Finance Costs E 704.22 21.25 725.47
Other expenses D 1,890.58 0.90 1,891.48
Total (il) 12,912.95 (103.00) 12,809.95
Profit before exceptional items and tax
215.08 309.60 524.68

Exceptional items {net) -
Profit after Exceptional items before Tax 215.08 309.60 524.68
Income tax expense - -
Profit for the year 215.08 309.60 524.68
Other Comprehensive Income 2.93 293
Total Comprehensive Income 215.08 312.53 527.61
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Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit for the year ended March 31,
2016

A Trade Receivables
The Company identifies receivables which shall be recovered beyond a period of twelve months as of the reporting date
and has discounted the same to its present value over the estimated tenure of the retention period. The impact of
discounting aggregating Rs.56.96 lakhs has been adjusted to the retained earnings on transition date (March 31, 2016:
Rs.36.18 lakhs) and Rs.20.78 lakhs has been recognised as finance income in the statement of profit and loss for the
year ended March 31, 2016.

B. Expected Credit Loss
Under Indian GAAP, the Company created provision for impairment of trade receivables on specific identification basis.
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss model (ECL) as per Ind AS 109.
This has resulted in incremental impairment provision of Rs. 515.23 lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs. 352.48 lakhs) as on the
transition date which has been adjusted against the retained earnings. The impact of Rs. 162.76 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2016 has been recognised as income under other operating income in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Defined benefit obligation
Both under previous Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined
benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind-AS, re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in balance sheet through OCI. Thus, employee benefits expense is reduced by Rs. 2.93 lakhs and is
recognised in OCI during the year ended March 31, 2016.

D. Loans
The Company has fair valued its security deposits and employee loans as at the transition date. An amount of Rs. 3.52
lakhs (March 31, 2016: 3.92 lakhs) has been recognised against corresponding increase in Retained Earnings. Also, Rs.
2.92 lakhs has been recognised as finance income on security deposits and employee loans, Rs.1.67 lakhs has been
recognised as employee cost in employee benefit expenses, Rs. 0.90 lakhs has been recognised as rent expenses in
other expenses.

E. Other Financial Liabilities
The Company has fair valued Lease Deposit received as at the transition date . An amount of Rs 2.00 lakhs ( March 31,
2016: 0.81 lakhs) has been recognised against corresponding increase in Retained Earnings. Also, Rs. 20.14 lakhs has
been recognised as Rental income on Security deposit under Revenue from Operations and Rs. 21.25 lakhs has been
recognised as interest expense in finance cost during the year ended March 31, 2016 .

F. Inventories
The Company has applied IND AS 103 Business Combinations prospectively to the Business Combinations that occurred
on and after March 31, 2015 . As a result the Company has derecognised the fair valuation impact on the inventories
arising on the PE&IS Business Combination as at the date of transition. The said inventory included Rs. 279.19 lakhs as
its fair value component as at the date of acquisition. Since the company has opted to restate the business combination of
PE&IS, it had restated its inventory at book values, thereby reducing the fair valuation impact by Rs. 279.19 lakhs as at
the date of transition (i.e April 1, 2015). Subsequently during the year ended March 31, 2016, the company had realised a
part of the acquired inventory, which included a fair value component to the extent of Rs. 129.75 lakhs, the impact of
which has been taken to the Statement of Profit & Loss as a part of Ind AS transition as income under 'Increase/
Decrease in stock of Traded Goods'. (Refer Note 31)

G. Intangible Assets
The Company has applied IND AS 103 Business Combinations prospectively to the Business Combinations that occurred
on and after March 31,2015 . As a result the Company has derecognised the Goodwill amounting to Rs 8,088.62 lakhs as
at April 1,2015 (March 31,2016: Rs. 8,088.62) arising on the PE&IS Business Combination. (Refer Note 31).
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44, Derivative Instruments and attached foreign currency exposure

a.Derivative Instruments: Forward contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Foraign Currenc Amount in Foreign Amount In Amount in Amount in A:):;ntnm Amount In
g Y Currency Lakhs Foreign Currency Lakhs g Lakhs
Currency
Particulars of Derivatives
Forward cover to
Purchase USD:
Hedge of underlying 8,04,717.15 528.89 - - . -
payables - USD
- Buyers' Credit 7,32,305.00 481.93 - - =
- Other Payables 72,412.15 46.96 . - - -
b.Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as at the Balance Sheet date
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Particulars Amount in Foreign Amount In LTl Amount In Amounti Amount In
Currency Foreign Foreign
Currency Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Currency Currency
Bank Balance AED 43,107 7.61 = = - =
AED 8,447,757 149.67 8,19,757 142.18 6,745 1.14
CAD 1,316 0.64 483 0.24 -
Payable EUR 3,07,646 213.18 3,63,703 276.39 1,62,910 109.16
. GBP - E : 41 0.04
JPY 17,64,180 10.23 600 0.00 5,64.625 2.93
UsD 11,41,272 740.11 14,11,830 936.11 8,17.339 509.75
AED 8,25,272 145.70 8,30,272 144.02 % -
CAD 1,48,688 72.25 4,070 2.02 78,052 38.24
Recsivabla EUR 3,81,801 264.56 1,33,836 94.93 3,70,848 248.30
GBP 16,371 13.24 34,416 32.66 31,146 28.73
JPY 24,00,702 13.92 44,90,192 23.45 51,15,382 26.50
uUsb 13,74,277 891.22 13,06,687 816.60 12,96,174 808.94
45. Leases

Operating Lease : Company as a Lessee

The Company has entered into operating lease agreements for storage locations and residential premises for its employees. The future lease rental payments are
determined on the basis of monthly lease payment terms as per the agreements. Lease rental expenses debited to Statement of Profit & Loss under cost of projects
are Rs Nil (31 March 2016 : Rs.0.58 lakhs) and under rent & hire charges Rs. 56.06 lakhs (31 March 2016: Rs. 49.91 Lakhs).

Operating Lease : Company as a Lessor

The Company has entered into operating lease agreements. All lease are cancellable except one property, which has a lock in period of 3 years. The future lease rental
receipts are determined on the basis of monthly lease receipt terms as per the agreements. Lease rental income credited to Statement of Profit & Loss is Rs.351.45
Lakhs (31 March 2016 : Rs. 376.05 Lakhs). Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
(a) Not later than one year 77.40 99.51 94.77
(b) Later than one year but not later than five years - 77.40 176.90

(c) Later than five years & .

46. Previous Year Comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to this year's classification.
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